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The Board is pleased to present its Annual Report and the audited Financial Statements for the 
Group and Association, for the year ended 31 March 2020.  

The Group comprises of the association Cartrefi Conwy Cyfyngedig and its wholly owned subsidiary 
Creating Enterprise, a Community Interest Company (CIC). Creating Enterprise has a 50% stake in a 
joint Venture to develop properties called Calon Homes.  

Cartrefi Conwy Cyfyngedig is a Co-Operative and Community Benefit Society administered by a 
Board of Management comprising of no less than 5 and up to 10 members. 

The Group and Association’s principal activities are the provision and management of affordable 
housing and the development of new affordable homes.   

Cartrefi Conwy owns 3,991 homes.  Of the homes we provide and manage: 

• 74% are for general needs households 
• 26% are for supported housing 

 
Supported housing is mainly sheltered housing accommodation. 

Cartrefi Conwy is a stock transfer association and has provided homes and worked closely with 
communities since 2008 following the transfer of the housing stock from Conwy County Borough 
Council.  

The principal activity of Creating Enterprise C.I.C. is the provision of housing and property related 
services to the Association, other social landlords and local authorities.   

 

Our Vision and Mission 

Cartrefi Conwy’s vision is of “creating communities to be proud of” and it’s mission is “to provide 
sustainable, affordable, quality homes and services for local communities, actively encouraging the 
participation of everyone and respecting the needs of all”. 

Cartrefi Conwy’s plans for the achievement of it’s objectives are subject to periodic review. We have 
now completed the final year of the 2016-20 Corporate Plan. The plan broke down the strategy into 
four themes – People Services, Property Services, Developments and Places, and Governance and 
Support Services, and it is felt we succeeded in delivering on the plan as follows; 
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We deliver excellent customer experience by developing and delivering services in 
reliable, accessible and innovative ways to meet the diverse housing and support needs 
of our current and future customers and contribute to improving their independence 
and well-being. 

 

We manage and maintain our housing and related assets to meet individual and local 
housing needs, ensuring that we maximise the return on our investment by 
implementing effective asset management techniques and maintain our housing and 
related assets in accordance with statutory and regulatory standards. 

 

We deliver a varied housing portfolio, sustainable development offerings and 
environmental improvements to accommodate an increasing diversity of customers, 
support community regeneration and make a positive contribution to improving our 
communities.  

 

We ensure that we remain a viable business, which is recognised as a reputable 
landlord, employer of choice and trusted partner, by building on our strengths, 
maximising use of technology and ensuring agility to respond to the changing 
environment in which we operate, delivering increased business efficiency and taking 
the business from “Good to Great”.  

 

Future Business Plan 

During 2019/20, we undertook a project named ‘innovate’ to co-produce the new corporate plan 
alongside our tenants, our colleagues, and other stakeholders and partners. We wanted to make 
sure that everyone involved with the organisation could have an opportunity to influence what we 
are doing and where we are going. Taking all views and feedback into consideration we have 
produced a new aspirational corporate plan based on seven priorities that was approved by the 
Board in April 2020. 
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Financial and Operational Review  

Funding 

In 2017 the Board completed its first refinancing process consisting of a restructuring and part 
repayment of the existing bank facility with Barclays Bank and the arrangement of a private 
placement with BAE Pensions. The objective of this process was to remove the loan restrictions 
inherent in Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT) loan agreements, give financial capacity to develop 
further homes and provide more control and flexibility when seeking to secure future funding. 

 In 2019-20 an additional £8m Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) was agreed with Barclays Bank to fund 
additional development activity.  

Following on from this and in line with the Board’s aspirations and in fulfilment of our vision, we 
have commenced a funding review to take the business forward and enable continued delivery of 
quality homes. 

Cash Flow  

As at 31 March 2020 Cartrefi Conwy’s Free Cash Flow Position is set out below:  

 2020 

£000 

2019 

£000 

Net Free Cash Inflow from operating activities 6,487 7,176 
Interest received 42 24 
   
Adjustments for reinvestment in existing properties;   
Component replacements (3,515) (2,647) 
Major works (3,041) (3,440) 
Purchase of tangible & intangible fixed assets (80) (205) 
   
Free cash consumed before loan repayments (107) 908 
Loan repayments - - 
Free cash consumed after loan repayments (107) 908 
 

Full details of the Group cash flow are provided in the cash flow statement on page 32 and note 25 
to the financial statements. 
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Development and Performance  

The detailed results for the year are set out in the Consolidated and the Association’s Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on pages 27 and 28 and the notes to the financial statements on pages 33 to 
73.  

The following table provides a summary of the Group’s Consolidated results: 

 

For the year ended 31 March  2020 

£’000 

2019 

£’000 

Turnover 25,816 23,639 

Operating Expenditure (21,366) (19,521) 

Net surplus on sale of fixed assets 2,596 1,362 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 7,046 5,480 

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties 21 (81) 

Net interest charges (2,267) (1,859) 

Taxation (23) - 

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year  4,777 3,540 

Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of pension schemes 3,319 (1,766) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,096 1,774 

 

Turnover has increased mainly as a result of the annual rent increase. Operating expenditure has 
also increased over the year and analysis of the increases can be seen in Note 3 to the accounts. 

There was again significant planned investment in the existing housing stock.  This investment in the 
stock, £4.155m (2019: £4.376m) in Major Repairs and Planned Maintenance is to ensure continued 
compliance with the Welsh Housing Quality Standard in the future and to meet the rising 
expectations of our tenants.  

As a result of this continued investment, the annual independent valuation of the Association’s stock 
saw the Existing Use Value – Social Housing of Cartrefi Conwy’s total stock including stock charged 
for loan security purposes increase from £99.110m to £108.005m as at 31 March 2020. 

The surplus from property sales of £2.596m is a result of a combination of statutory sales through 
tenants exercising their Right to Buy and voluntary sales of uneconomic properties through the 
Association’s asset management strategy.  

Strategic Report 
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The Fair Value of commercial properties has increased modestly from £1.253m to £1.274m which is 
indicative of the current economic climate. 

Net interest charges are £2.267m (2019: £1.849m). The average rate of interest paid in the year was 
4.63% (2019: 4.63%). Rates have been fixed on the majority of debt in order to provide certainty 
over interest payable.  

The Net Surplus for the year is £4.777m (2019: £3.540m) prior to actuarial gains on defined benefit 
pension schemes of £3.319m.  The balance after taking into accounts actuarial gains of £8.096m is 
being re-invested in the business to contribute to the regeneration of the area, development of new 
homes and returning empty homes to use.  The actuarial adjustments relate to the requirements of 
the FRS102 accounting standard. Accounting adjustments have been required with regard to the 
future costs of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the defined benefit Social Housing 
Pension Scheme (SHPS) in conjunction with the annual valuation for accounting purposes. 

The fifth year of operation of the Association’s subsidiary company, Creating Enterprise has seen its 
turnover increase to £10.579m (2019: £9.824m). Within this turnover  Creating Enterprise generated 
£1.090m (2019: £0.381m) from work with external clients. In addition to the property maintenance 
contracts, a number of planned works and development contracts were also undertaken for Cartrefi 
Conwy.  The level and type of work has increased steadily throughout the year and the Modular 
Solutions Factory has been a contributing factor to the success and development of the Group. In 
2019-20 Creating Futures was established which encompasses the employment and social enterprise 
academy whose work is an integral part of our delivery of social value within the communities where 
we operate. Our job café’s and training facility has seen 1,741 people, including many of our tenant’s 
accessing our services and resulted in 97 people securing employment locally. Profit on ordinary 
activities for Creating Enterprise before tax was £0.127m (2019: £0.147m).    

The Consolidated and Association Statements of Financial Position are provided on page 29 and the 
Consolidated and Association Statements of Changes in Reserves on page 30 with supporting details 
found in the notes to the financial statements on pages 33 to 73. The following table provides a 
summary of the key elements of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. 

For the year ended 31 March 2020 

£000 

2019 

£000 

Fixed Assets (Net Book Value) 75,202 57,633 

Net Current Assets 5,266 10,431 

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 80,468 68,064 

Creditors falling due after one year (60,739) (54,587) 

Pension Asset/(Liability) (761) (2,605) 

Total Net Assets 18,968 10,872 

Debt per unit £10,649 £10,861 
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The Association continues to invest in new homes with our property assets increasing by £17.569m 
(2019: £11.357m). This is part of Cartrefi Conwy’s current development programme which will 
deliver over 440 new homes by 2024. 

 As at 31 March 2020 Cartrefi Conwy’s total drawn loan borrowings were £42.5m out of a loan 
facility of £58.5m.  

Financial and Non-Financial Key Performance Indicators 

The Association’s performance during 2019/20 against key indicators and compared to previous 
years is set out in the table below: 

For the year ended 31 March 2020 2019 2018 2017 

Service Area     

% rent loss due to lettable properties being empty 1.45% 1.19% 1.80% 1.75% 

Rent arrears (current arrears as a % of rent & 
service charges receivable) 

3.21% 2.44% 2.43% 2.26% 

Re-let time (calendar days) 29.9 days 27.3 days 30.4 days 28.3 days 

% annual gas inspections completed 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

From 2019-20 the re-let time is based on all standard lettings and our performance reflects this 
change across the table for comparison purposes. Prior to this, performance was based on standard 
lets excluding properties that were exceptional in nature e.g. ‘hard to let’.   

The rent arrears figure has been affected by an increase of tenants in receipt of Universal Credit, as 
well as tenants affected in Quarter 4 by the implications of the COVID-19 situation. Income 
collection remains a priority of the organisation with a dedicated Universal Credit Advisor post, and 
Money Support team available for tenant support. Tenancy sustainability is also a priority, with a 
new re-letting strategy implemented during 2019/20 with an emphasis on an improved property 
condition and investing time in early tenancy success. This has slightly impacted on the rent loss % 
and time taken to re-let empty homes; however, this should be offset longer term by a reduction in 
unsuccessful tenancies and evictions, along with the indirect costs they entail. Our gas servicing 
compliance during the year was 100% and the importance of ensuring our tenants are safe in their 
homes is understood throughout the organisation.  
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Health and Safety 

This year we have developed a new database to enable all our health and safety related information 
to be recorded in one place and easily accessible to all. This gives our business more accurate, up to 
date ‘live’ information on all matters relating to health and safety. 

We employed a Health and Safety Compliance Manager to help improve the internal rigour of our 
statutory health and safety compliance within the Group, alongside a new trainee post to further 
expand the capacity of the team to provide expert health and safety advice to the group. 

Compliance 
We have developed a new internal audit and inspection programme which includes scheduled 
internal compliance audits, dip sampling on data and ‘site’ inspections across all areas of the 
business. We have reviewed the Asbestos Management Plan which outlined some ‘lessons learned’ 
and this will feed into the continuous improvement cycle.   This has provided reassurance to the 
Audit and Assurance Committee that all actions identified through the (external) Landlord Safety 
Audit conducted in May 2019 have been completed.  Going forward, the Health and Safety 
Compliance Manager will act as a ‘critical friend’ to all levels of management. 

Training 
In May 2019 we launched a new Health and Safety online training programme for all colleagues, and 
they will be expected to complete refresher training annually. This ran alongside specialist risk 
assessment training (delivered by ROSPA) for all our managers and safety representatives.   

Health and safety representatives 
Over the past year, the Health and Safety Representatives (across the group) have matured in their 
roles and grown in confidence.  They are encouraged to feedback via the Health and Safety 
Committees and to get actively involved in the risk assessment process.  

Awards and external accreditation 
Our dedication and commitment to ensuring the health and safety of our tenants and colleagues 
was recognised again this year with our ninth ROSPA Gold Award. 

Responding to the COVID-19 Pandemic  
In early March it became clear that COVID-19 could become a serious risk to our business, our 
colleagues and our tenants.  With this in mind, we quickly established a ‘task force’ to ensure we 
were prepared.  The group approved an Infectious Diseases Policy on 3 March 2020.  We have 
developed dynamic risk assessments and ‘Standard Operating Procedures’ for frontline and office-
based colleagues as well as home workers. These are reviewed weekly to ensure we are keeping up 
to date with Welsh Government legislation. 

Future Prospects 

The financial year 2019/20 represented the last year of our current Corporate Plan (2016-20) and 
built upon previous plans and strategic decisions whilst recognising the changing housing agenda 
and the sector risks. The Association seeks to move forward as an organisation whilst continuing to 
make a difference, provide homes and services valued by customers. 
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Working in partnership with local authorities, the NHS and other stakeholders is key to the delivery 
of services to the local communities we work in. Our willingness to offer flexible and specialist 
solutions will be more important than ever over the coming years. 

The Association has a significant development programme scheduled for the next four years. This 
coupled with the further growth of our subsidiary company, Creating Enterprise, will enable the 
undertaking of additional works for the benefit of the association. Work is now commencing on 
Creating Enterprise’s modular build solutions project from the recently established factory in 
Holyhead with a commitment for more than 60 Passive Haus homes over the next 12-18 months. 

During July 2020 Creating Enterprise entered into a five year licence agreement with Beattie Passive 
as a delivery partner to supply innovative modular construction methods delivering high quality 
energy efficient building methods to Passivhaus standard. Creating Enterprise will have exclusivity 
rights in the North Wales area. As part of this agreement an advanced licence fee was paid of 
£400,000 which will be expensed through their Statement of Income and Retained Earnings over the 
five year licence period. 

Calon Homes LLP was established in May 2018 to assist in furthering the strategic and charitable 
aims of Cartrefi Conwy.  This is a  50/50 Joint Venture Limited Liability Partnership between Creating 
Enterprise C.I.C and Brenig Developments Limited and its purpose is to provide a vehicle through 
which housing and other properties can be developed or refurbished and then offered for sale or 
rent at commercial market rates, without compromising our social housing assets.  Any profits 
arising from the business activities of Calon Homes LLP, unless retained within that business, will be 
shared on a 50/50 basis between the members (Creating Enterprise C.I.C and Brenig Developments 
Limited). Creating Enterprise will then have the option of making a Gift Aid payment from this up to 
the parent, Cartrefi Conwy, for further investment in new social housing.      

Covid-19 

We, like everyone, are assessing the impact that the Covid-19 pandemic  will have, not only on the 
organisation, but also the environment in which we operate and the communities in which we work.  

The late onset of the pandemic in 2019/20 resulted in a minimal impact on the Group operations. As  
the main impact will follow the financial year-end, the organisation has reviewed what the likely 
effect and implications of the pandemic would be on liquidity and compliance with our regulatory 
and funder requirements. We have also assessed the potential impact on our key strategic risks.  
This was tested against the thirty year business plan with a set of stretching assumptions. 

The base business plan is built upon realistic and agreed assumptions for income and expenditure. 
These are set in line with expectations and also provide sufficient headroom to enable the 
organisation to react to any adverse events that can occur within our normal operating 
environment.  In consideration of the potential impact upon our organisation from Covid-19, we 
constructed a revised cashflow from the impact of reduced income and expenditure and delays to 
our development and external works programmes from the three month lockdown period. This 
demonstrated that the organisation remained financially viable over the 24 month period analysed 
but would reduce liquidity by £0.521m.  

To further understand the impact on our operations, the base business plan was tested against a 
number of scenarios. This included increasing arrears by 50% for 1 year and then reducing this 

Strategic Report 



13 
 

proportionately back to the baseline figure over 3 years.  Additionally, increasing the allowance for 
bad debts to 3% and doubling voids to 4% for the forthcoming two years. A further scenario was 
modelled in recognition of the delays in the development programme from the three month 
lockdown period as well as increasing expenditure costs due to the unknown but potential 
implications on staffing and materials in the post Covid-19 operating environment. This included 
modelling a number of multi-variant scenarios. 

The results of this demonstrated that over the short and medium term there were no areas of non-
compliance but the scenarios tested did reduce the operating surplus by £0.970m over the life of the 
plan.   

To date, we have continued to support our tenants and customers by ensuring we provide 
appropriate services tailored to the current operating environment. We have developed a wellbeing 
service in recognition of the impacts that Covid-19 is having on our tenants and the demographics of 
our tenant base. This has provided necessary help and support to those who are vulnerable and in 
need. 

The health and safety of our tenants is our utmost priority and we are working with tenants to 
ensure that the homes in which they live remain safe in the current climate. In spite of the 
restrictions and operational difficulties, we have ensured that we have maintained over 99% of 
statutory compliance whilst adhering to safe and secure working practices. 

As part of our pledge to assist and support our tenants, partners and stakeholders, we are ensuring 
that payments to suppliers are made quickly and efficiently.   To assist this we are monitoring our 
cash flow and liquidity as well as all additional expenditure being incurred as a result of Covid-19. 
We initiated regular updates to the Board to ensure that we are kept updated with the current 
operational and financial impacts from Covid-19.  

We recognise that our staff are our key contributors to ensuring that we can operate effectively and 
deliver the services necessary in the current climate and our primary obligation is to ensure their 
safety whilst operating in new ways. To maintain and support this we have reviewed and  
implemented new operational working practises and procured effective personal protective 
equipment.  Our staff continue to work diligently in the current operational environment and with 
support from our tailored human resource strategies and policies, we continue see minimal staff 
absences across the organisation.  As we begin to move forward with our services our re-
mobilisation plan achievement is built upon the following 4 C’s:  

Compliance Government law, HSE, Governing bodies, RA’s and working procedures 
 

Communication Ensure all revised documents are shared in the clearest way and  
understood by all stakeholders 

Conform A written confirmation of understanding and adherence to revised 
documents 

Continue   To listen to regulators, colleagues, tenants and customers then review 
and act 

 

Monitoring the operating environment over the medium and long term for the effects of the Covid-
19 pandemic will be critical to ensure that we remain financially and operationally viable. We will 
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Strategic Report 

therefore continue to monitor and review the on-going impact on our operations and business plan 
and ensure that the Board remain updated throughout.  

Risk Assurance Framework 

The Board cannot delegate ultimate responsibility for the system of internal control but has 
delegated authority to the Group Audit and Assurance Committee to regularly review the 
effectiveness of internal controls. The Board receives Group Audit & Assurance Committee minutes.   

Cartrefi Conwy’s Risk Assurance Framework is based on the three lines of defence model which is 
designed to assure the effective and transparent management of risk by making accountabilities 
clear.   

The Board is therefore able to confirm that there is a robust and on-going process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group. The process has been in place 
throughout the year under review, up to the date of the annual report.  

The Board confirms that no weaknesses were found in the internal controls for the year ended 31 
March 2020 which otherwise might have resulted in material losses, contingencies or uncertainties 
which require disclosure in the financial statements. 

The Group Audit & Assurance Committee has previously identified twelve strategic risks that are 
detailed below, along with related controls to form an Assurance Mapping document. Alongside this 
document, a corporate Risk Matrix has been produced which includes the strategic risks, related KPIs 
as well as the Board’s risk appetite. This allows movement in trends to be identified and presented 
for discussion at each Board and Group Audit and Assurance Committee meeting.  

Throughout the year under review up to the date of this annual report we have additionally; 

• assessed manged and responded to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the 
organisation 

• continued to review our governance arrangements and the Board’s line of sight across the 
governance structure to ensure we maintain robust assurance as to the management of risk. 

• given consideration to the potential impact on our materials supply chain, costs and 
operational capacity arising from the evolving  Brexit process. At this time the Board is 
assured that appropriate monitoring and consideration is being given to such matters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 
 

Strategic Report 

Strategic Risk Controls 

Income 

• Reduced or withdrawn 
income streams 

 

Regular monitoring of income streams and operational performance 
conducted throughout the organisation up to Board level 

In this year under review up to the date of this annual report we have 
additionally implemented a new technology solution ‘Rent Sense’ to 
further improve assurance in relation to operational performance and 
reporting of rent collection  

Expenditure 

• Overall expenditure in 
excess of agreed 
budgeted amounts 

 

Regular budget monitoring and reporting to management and to 
Board 

 

Funding 

• Reduced, uncompetitive 
or withdrawn funding 
streams 

 

Treasury management strategy in place to attempt to diversify 
funding sources as far as possible to mitigate risk. Monitoring of 
covenant compliance via management accounts  

Development and 
improvement works 

• Lack of return on 
investment made in new 
developments or 
improvement works 

 

Regular monitoring of potential new developments and properties for 
sale and effect on business plan  

Health and Safety 

• Risk to the health and 
safety of tenants, staff, 
contractors and the 
general public 

 

Statutory health and safety policies in place along with regular 
training and ongoing performance monitoring. 

In this year under review up to the date of this annual report we have 
additionally acquired and are implementing a new technology 
solution ‘SHE Assure’ to further improve assurance in relation to  
health, safety and environment compliance monitoring  

Maintenance 

• Properties not 
maintained to an agreed 
standard 

 

Regular monitoring of status of properties against the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard. Regular budget monitoring and reporting. 
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ICT 

• Ineffective or failing 
systems that affects 
business efficiency and 
continuity. 

 

ICT strategy in place with support from external contractors and 
consultants. 

Governance 

• Ineffective governance 
arrangements leading to 
regulatory intervention 
or downgrading 

 

CHC Code of Governance adopted with relevant policies in place. 
Open and transparent communication with the Regulator. External 
legal advice available 

Staff 

• Lack of or reduction in 
the number of motivated 
or well-trained staff 

 

Dedicated HR team with policies and procedures in place along with 
staff code of conduct. Regular monitoring of absence management 
and staff turnover. 

Customers 

• Reduction in customer 
satisfaction leads to 
reputational damage 

 

Regular contact with customers through newsletters, letters and the 
Home Partner service. Dedicated ASB, Tenancy Support and 
Independent Living support teams. Tenant-led Scrutiny panel in place 
with on-going relationship with TPAS. Satisfaction levels reported to 
the Regulator. 

Growth / Diversification 

• Diversification activities 
lead to unsustainable 
Business Plan 

Stress testing of Business Plan completed. Commercial Framework 
implemented as methodology for commercial ventures 

Subsidiary: Creating 
Enterprise 

• Lack of service delivery 
or quality and reduction 
in income streams 

Business Plan reviewed annually. Contractual service level 
agreements in place with regular reports to Board. 
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Shareholder Policy 

On adoption of a new set of Rules for the Association (January 2019) the need for constituency-
based categorisation of shareholders was removed. There is now only one class of shareholder with 
all votes ranking equally on a one share one vote basis. 

Applications must be submitted in writing, setting out the reason why the applicant wishes to 
become a shareholder. The Board has the power in its absolute discretion to accept or reject an 
application. If approved, the individual is issued with a share certificate upon payment of £1 (one 
pound sterling) and their particulars entered in the register of shareholders.   

Information to Auditors 
The Board Members who held office at the date of approval of this Board report confirm that, so far 
as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Association’s auditors 
are unaware; the members have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as members in 
order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
Association’s auditors are aware of that information. 

Internal Control Statement 
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility to the Association for establishing and maintaining 
the whole system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. 

The system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to 
achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or 
loss. 

The process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Association is 
on-going and has been in place throughout the year from 1 April 2019 up to the date of approval of 
the Annual Report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

The following mechanisms constitute the key elements of the control framework designed and 
implemented by management to provide effective internal control: 

• Board approved terms of reference and delegated authorities for all Committees and its 
subsidiary company Creating Enterprise C.I.C 

• Clearly defined management responsibilities and delegated authorities in relation to the 
establishment and investment in Calon Homes LLP (the Joint Venture between Creating 
Enterprise and Brenig Developments Limited) 

Governance and 
Regulation 
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• Clearly defined management responsibilities for the identification, evaluation and control of 
significant risks 

• Robust strategic and business planning processes, with detailed financial budgets and 
forecasts 

• Annual review of health and safety arrangements and report to Board on assurance 
methodology for Health and Safety systems and performance 

• Formal recruitment, retention, training and development policies for all staff 
• Established authorisation and appraisal procedures for significant new initiatives and 

commitments, including land and property development as part of our development and 
asset management strategies 

• A board approved treasury policy and annual treasury strategy which is subject to external 
review each year 

• Performance management information presented to the Executive Leadership Team, 
Committees and Board 

• Board approved whistleblowing, bribery, anti-theft and corruption policies 
• Board approved fraud policies, covering prevention, detection and reporting, together with 

recoverability of assets; and 
• Regular monitoring of loan covenants and requirements for new loan facilities. 
• Asset & Liabilities Register maintained 
• Procedure manuals for staff 
• An established programme of internal audit activities derived from an assessment of the key 

business risks (e.g. service delivery, health and safety, and financial). 

The Board 
The current Board members and the Executive Directors are set out on page 1 of the Financial 
Statements.  

Mr David Shepherd was appointed as Interim Chair in June 2019 following the sudden unexpected 
death of Mr Huw Evans.  During his period of office Mr Shepherd continued the process started by 
Mr Evans, of recruiting a number of new Board members and co-optees across the governance 
structure. This successful recruitment campaign resulted in 5 new appointments within the Cartrefi 
Conwy Board and 2 within Creating Enterprise.  There are now no ‘constituency’ appointments and 
the additional skills and diversity secured from this process is making a significant contribution to all 
aspects of governance across the group.  

Mr Shepherd served as Interim Chair until December 2019, following which he was appointed as 
Vice Chair. Mr Jim Illidge was appointed by the Board to fill the role of Chair of the Board until 2022, 
when he is due to retire in accordance with the 9 year service rule.     

Mr Illidge has been a Board member of Cartrefi Conwy since 2013.  His appointments during this 
time have included Chair of the subsidiary Creating Enterprise from its formation in March 2015 until 
November 2017, and Chair of the Group Audit  and Assurance Committee from November 2017 until 
December 2019. 

 In December 2019 Ms. Kath Coughlin was appointed as the new chair of the Group Audit and 
Assurance Committee.      

Governance and Regulation 
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The Board is responsible for the strategic leadership and direction of the organisation and ensuring 
its corporate objectives and statutory responsibilities are met.    

Day to day management and implementation of the Group’s strategy and policy framework is 
delegated to the Group Chief Executive and the senior officers who meet regularly and attend Board 
meetings. 

The Cartrefi Conwy Board meets on average eight times a year for regular business and also 
undertakes additional activities to support consideration of strategy.    

Members are supported in their on-going personal development; this includes the opportunity to 
attend sector and role relevant networks and conferences, through a range of training opportunities, 
briefings and ‘away days’, based on recommendations arising from discussions at Board or 
Committee meetings and the annual Board member appraisal process. During the Covid-19 
restrictions, Board members have had the opportunity to engage in webinar sessions provided by 
the wide range of consultants and advisors working in the housing sector.   

The activities of the Board and all Committees are governed by the Scheme of Delegations and 
Standing Orders which are reviewed annually. 

Listed below are the skills the Board considers as important to Cartrefi Conwy at its current stage of 
development, with the expectation that although not all Board Members will have all these skills, 
the organisation will benefit by having a diverse range of Board members, with different life 
experiences and skills. 

• Governance and working as one of a board team  
• Awareness of, and empathy with Cartrefi Conwy Group Values and social mission 
• Critical analysis  
• Performance management and continuous improvement 
• Vision and Strategy setting and understanding  
• Financial mind-set; gained from budget responsibility, technical practice (e.g. accountancy).  

Able to understand financial data/statement and interrogate trends  
• Political awareness, diplomacy and networking 
• Knowledge of Housing or other sectors; for example, Education, Health, Police, etc.  
• Risk appetite, risk management and mitigation strategies  
• Provision of customer services with a focus on performance and improvement  
• Commercial business, business planning, financial and management skills  
• Management, leadership and strategy in a housing or similar context  
• Knowledge of the local economy, areas and communities served by the Association and its 

subsidiaries  
• Funding, planning and development for housing and regeneration  
• Equal opportunities and diversity; specific needs of local communities  
• Community/ Customer focused, wellbeing and health 

Additionally, we expect our Board Members to play an active part in leading the business and so 
consider the following to be ideal qualities Board Members should have: 

• Leadership, Inspiring, set a good example 

Governance and Regulation 
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• Commitment of sufficient personal time to ensure they perform well  
• Curiosity to seek out relevant information and use it appropriately to question or challenge 

others or the ways things are done    
• Courage and Determination to deal with difficult decisions, challenging circumstances and 

drive innovation and improvement 
• Team player with good interpersonal and communication skills 
• Considerate, respectful and supportive towards others working with them   
• Ability and willingness to accept collective responsibility and majority decisions 

 

Throughout this review year Board members have shown their commitment and support by 
contributing in the boardroom, whether physically in person or virtually, through constructive 
debate and decision making. As far as has been allowed in this review year, Board and Committee 
members have participated in a range of community, sector and tenant focused events, learning and 
development sessions.   

In July 2019 the Board moved to a digital board portal, helping improve the efficiency of meeting 
administration and accessibility of information for Board and Committee members.   During the 
Covid19 restrictions the added value of this tool has been particularly proven when used in 
conjunction with ‘virtual’ meetings. Throughout the Covid19 crisis Board and Committee members 
have been provided with additional risk management updates and business has continued to be 
addressed in a timely manner. Looking forward, it is expected that virtual meetings will continue to 
feature within our governance arrangements.    

At the Annual General Meeting, which will be held on 28 September 2020, each board member who 
has served their fixed term are required to retire from the Board.    

Board members retiring by rotation may, if they wish and are eligible, apply for re-election.  All 
Board members are recruited for the skills, knowledge and expertise they can bring to the business. 
They are required to act in the best interests of Cartrefi Conwy at all times, maintain confidentiality 
and present a positive, professional and caring image when acting as ambassadors for the 
Association. All newly appointed Board members are supported by an induction programme to help 
them settle in and become effective members of the Board as quickly as possible.  

Statement of Board’s Responsibilities 
The Board is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and regulations. 

The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered social housing legislation 
require the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Registered Social Landlord (RSL) and of the surplus or deficit for 
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:    

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and  
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• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the RSL will continue in business.   

 

The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the RSL and the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
financial position of the RSL and the Group to enable it to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and Schedule 1 to the 
Housing Act 1996 and the Accounting Requirements for Social Landlords Registered in Wales: 
General Determination 2015. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the RSL and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the society’s website. Legislation in the 
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ 
from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Regulation  

As a Registered Social Landlord the Association is regulated by the Welsh Ministers, who publish a 
Regulatory Judgement each year as to the Associations’ financial viability and how well it is 
performing. The Minister’s last Regulatory Judgement, published in November 2019 set out the Co-
Regulation Status as;  

 Governance and Services - Standard   

• Identifies and manages new and emerging risks appropriately.   

Financial Viability - Standard   

• Meets viability requirements and has the financial capacity to deal with scenarios 
appropriately.   

Executive Directors 

The four Executive Directors hold no interest in the Association’s shares and act as executives within 
the authority delegated by the Board and set out in the Financial Regulations and Scheme of 
Delegations of the Association. 

All Executive Directors are employed on the same terms as other staff with the exception of notice 
periods and receive a car allowance worth 10% of their salary and a Performance Related Bonus 
scheme through which up to 10% of salary bonus will be payable on successful performance against 
objectives set for the year.   

One of the Executive Directors is a member of the LGPS Pension Scheme and one is a member of the 
SHPS Pension Scheme. They participate in the schemes on the same terms as all other eligible staff 
and the Association contributes to the schemes on behalf of its employees. The other Directors have 
personal pension scheme arrangements.  

Governance and Regulation 
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The Managing Director – Cartrefi Conwy confirmed his intention to retire at the end of July 2020. A 
recruitment process for a replacement was completed during the year and a replacement has been 
in post since June 2020. 

Employees 

Our employees are essential to the delivery of our vision and strategic aims. We continue to invest in 
good quality training and development.   
 
As at 31 March 2020 we had 229 employees in the Group with 165 employees working for Cartrefi 
Conwy and 64 employees working for Creating Enterprise. 
 
Cartrefi Conwy is committed to equality of opportunity and drives continuous improvement.  
 

Register of Detected Frauds 

The Company Secretary maintains the register of detected frauds. In the year no successful frauds 
were identified. Colleagues have been reminded of the need for continued vigilance in preventing 
fraud and internal audit reviews are undertaken throughout the year to recommend on-going 
improvements in working practices to minimise the ever-changing fraud risk. 

Going Concern 

The Group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its future 
development are set out within the Strategic Report.  The Association has in place long-term debt 
facilities including £16m (2019: £8m) of undrawn facilities as at 31 March 2020, which provide 
adequate resources to finance committed reinvestment and development programmes, along with 
the Group’s day to day operations.  The Group also has a long term business plan which shows that it 
is able to service these debt facilities whilst continuing to comply with lender’s covenants.  

The Covid-19 pandemic is having an operational impact on businesses and social housing providers. 
The late onset of the pandemic in 2019/20 resulted in a minimal impact on the Group operations. As 
the main impact will follow the financial year-end, the organisation has reviewed what the likely 
effect and implications of the pandemic would be on liquidity and compliance with our regulatory 
and funder requirements. We have also assessed the potential impact on our key strategic risks.  
This was tested against the thirty year business plan with a set of stretching assumptions. 

The base business plan is built upon realistic and agreed assumptions for income and expenditure. 
These are set in line with expectations and also provide sufficient headroom to enable the 
organisation to react to any adverse events that can occur within our normal operating 
environment.  In consideration of the potential impact upon our organisation from Covid-19, we 
constructed a revised cashflow from the impact of reduced income and expenditure and delays to 
our development and external works programmes from the three month lockdown period. This 
demonstrated that the organisation remained financially viable over the 24 month period analysed 
but would reduce liquidity by £0.521m.  

To further understand the impact on our operations, the base business plan was tested against a 
number of scenarios. This included increasing arrears by 50% for 1 year and then reducing this 
proportionately back to the baseline figure over 3 years.  Additionally, increasing the allowance for 
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bad debts to 3% and doubling voids to 4% for the forthcoming two years. A further scenario was 
modelled in recognition of the delays in the development programme from the three month 
lockdown period as well as increasing expenditure costs due to the unknown but potential 
implications on staffing and materials in the post Covid-19 operating environment. This included 
modelling a number of multi-variant scenarios. 

The results of this demonstrated that over the short and medium term there were no areas of non-
compliance but the scenarios tested did reduce the operating surplus by £0.970m over the life of the 
plan.   

Monitoring the operating environment over the medium and long term for the effects of the Covid-
19 pandemic will be critical to ensure that we remain financially and operationally viable. Should a 
further period of regional or national lockdown take place, the Group would utilise its funding 
arrangements and potential Government support to mitigate the effects on its operations.  

The Brexit transition period will end on the 31 December 2020. It is hoped that a trade relationship 
with the European Union (EU) and third countries will continue, however, there is a possibility that 
there may be a ’no-deal’ exit from the EU. The Group has assessed the operational impact this may 
have on the organisation and concluded that this is currently minimal given our current staffing, 
funding, supplier and material make-up.  

In consideration of the above the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group and 
Association has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, 
being a period of at least twelve months after the date on which the report and financial statements 
are signed. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial statements. 

 

Annual General Meeting 

The Association’s Annual General Meeting will be held on 28th September 2020 at Morfa Gele, 
North Wales Business Park, Cae Eithin, Abergele LL22 8LJ.  This will however remain under review 
due to the current Covid19 outbreak and if required alternative arrangements in accordance with 
relevant guidelines will be made and appropriately communicated.  

External Auditors 

Our external auditors for the year end 31 March 2020 are RSM UK Audit LLP.  RSM UK Audit LLP have 
expressed a willingness to continue in office.  

 

Approved on behalf of the Board by: 

                   Date:    01/09/2020 
Richard J Illidge 

Board Member (Chair)  
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Opinion on financial statements 

We have audited the financial statements of Cartrefi Conwy Cyfyngedig (the ‘Association’) for the 
year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Consolidated and Association Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Association Statement of Financial Position, the 
Consolidated and Association Statement of Changes in Reserves, the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.  The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice). 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Association’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its 

income and expenditure for the year then ended 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community 

Benefit Societies Act 2014, Schedule 1 to the Housing Act 1996 and the Accounting 
Requirements for Social Landlords General Determination (Wales) 2015. 

 
 

Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) 
require us to report to you where: 

 

Independent auditors’ report to 
the members of Cartrefi Conwy 
Cyfyngedig  
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the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or  

the Board has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that 
may cast significant doubt about the Association’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 

 
Other information 
 
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board is responsible for the other 
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, 
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the 
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Corporate governance matters 
 
In addition to our audit of the financial statements, we have reviewed whether the Board’s 
statement on pages 19 and 20 reflects the Association’s compliance with the Housing Association 
Circular 02/10 (“The Circular”) ‘Internal Controls and Reporting’, and we report whether the Board 
has provided the disclosures required by the Circular and whether the statement is not inconsistent 
with information of which we are aware from our audit. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 require us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

•   a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or 
• the parent entity has not kept proper accounting records; or 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account; or  
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 
With respect to the Board’s statement on internal controls, in our opinion the Board has provided 
the disclosures required by the Circular and the statement is not inconsistent with the information 
of which we are aware from our audit work on the financial statements. 

Independent auditors’ report to the     
members of Cartrefi Conwy Cyfyngedig  
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Responsibilities of the Board  
 
As explained more fully in the Board’s responsibilities statement set out on page 20, the Board is 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intends to liquidate the Association or 
to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the Association’s members as a body, in accordance with Part 7 of the 
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.  Our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the Association’s members those matters we are required to state to them in 
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Association and the Association’s members 
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

 

 

 

 
RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants - 3 Hardman Street, Manchester, M3 3HF 
Date:  

 

Independent auditors’ report to the     
members of Cartrefi Conwy Cyfyngedig  

 

20th October 2020
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 1 September 2020 

                             
Gareth Jones                           Richard Illidge                  Sandra Lee 
Board Member         Board Member                Company Secretary           
 
The consolidated results relate wholly to continuing activities. 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 

    2020 2019 

   Note £’000 £’000 

Turnover   25,816 23,639 

Operating Expenditure 3 (21,366) (19,521) 

Gain on disposal of housing properties 6 2,596 1,362 

Operating Surplus  7,046 5,480 

    

Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties  14 21 (81) 

Interest receivable 7 42 24 

Interest and financing costs 8 (2,309) (1,883) 

Surplus before tax  4,800 3,540 

Taxation  (23) - 

Surplus for the year  4,777 3,540 

    

Actuarial gains/(losses) in respect of pension schemes 22 3,319 (1,766) 

    

Total Comprehensive income for the year  8,096 1,774 

Consolidated Statement 
of Comprehensive 
Income 
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The financial statements were approved by the Board on 1 September 2020 

                             
Gareth Jones                           Richard Illidge                  Sandra Lee 
Board Member         Board Member                Company Secretary           
 
The Association results relate wholly to continuing activities. 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.      
 
 

    2020 2019 

   Note £’000 £’000 

Turnover   24,879 23,317 

Operating Expenditure 3 (20,403) (19,287) 

Gain on disposal of housing properties 6 2,596 1,362 

Operating Surplus  7,072 5,392 

    

Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties  14 21 (81) 

Interest receivable 7 42 24 

Interest and financing costs 8 (2,309) (1,883) 

Surplus before tax  4,826 3,452 

Taxation  - - 

Surplus for the year  4,826 3,452 

    

Actuarial gains/(losses) in respect of pension schemes 22 3,319 (1,766) 

    

Total Comprehensive income for the year  8,145 1,686 

Association Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.  The financial statements were 
approved by the Board on 1 September 2020. 

   

 

    

Gareth Jones                 Richard Illidge                  Sandra Lee Company number:   
Board Member       Board Member            Company Secretary                   30457R 
 

            Group         Association 
   2020 2019 2020 2019 
  Note £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Fixed Assets       
Intangible Fixed Assets 11 36 96 31 89 
Tangible Fixed Assets – Housing properties 12 71,290 53,701 71,290 53,701 
Tangible Fixed Assets – Other 13 2,499 2,543 2,446 2,501 
Investment Properties  1,274 1,253 1,274 1,253 
Long term Debtor  103 40 - - 
Total Fixed Assets  75,202 57,633 75,041 57,544 
      
Current Assets      
Stock 16 155 107 63 67 
Trade and other debtors 17 3,289 3,019 2,800 2,811 
Cash and cash equivalents 23 5,686 11,059 5,450 10,429 
  9,130 14,185 8,313 13,307 
      
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 (3,864) (3,754) (2,987) (2,937) 
      
Net current assets  5,266 10,431 5,326 10,370 
Total assets less current liabilities  80,468 68,064 80,367 67,914 
      
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 (60,739) (54,587) (60,739) (54,587) 
      
Pension (liability) 22 (761) (2,605) (761) (2,605) 
Total net assets  18,968 10,872 18,867 10,722 
      
Reserves      
Share capital  - - - - 
Income and expenditure reserve  17,694 9,619 17,593 9,469 
Revaluation reserve  1,274 1,253 1,274 1,253 
      
Total reserves  18,968 10,872 18,867 10,722 

Consolidated and 
Association Statement of 
Financial Position 
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   Revenue Revaluation Other 2020 

   Reserve Reserve Reserve Total 

   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance as the 1 April 2018 7,720 1,334 44 9,098 

Surplus for the year 3,540 - - 3,540 

Transfer between reserves (17) - 17 - 

Transfer to Revaluation Reserve 81 (81) - - 

Actuarial loss on pension schemes (1,766) - - (1,766) 

Balance as at the 31 March 2019 9,558 1,253 61 10,872 

Surplus for the year 4,777 - - 4,777 

Transfer between reserves (19) - 19  

Transfer to Revaluation Reserve (21) 21 - - 

Actuarial gain/loss on pension schemes 3,319 - - 3,319 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 17,614 1,274 80 18,968 

Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Reserves 
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   Revenue Revaluation Other 2020 

   Reserve Reserve Reserve Total 

   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance as the 1 April 2018 7,658 1,334 44 9,036 

Surplus for the year 3,452 - - 3,452 

Transfer between reserves (17) - 17 - 

Transfer to Revaluation Reserve 81 (81) - - 

Actuarial loss on pension schemes (1,766) - - (1,766) 

Balance as at the 31 March 2019 9,408 1,253 61 10,722 

Surplus for the year 4,826 - - 4,826 

Transfer between reserves (19) - 19 - 

Transfer to Revaluation Reserve (21) 21 - - 

Actuarial gain/loss on pension schemes 3,319 - - 3,319 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 17,513 1,274 80 18,867 

     

Association Statement of 
Changes in Reserves 
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

    2020 2019 

   Note £’000 £’000 

Net cash generated from operating activities 25 7,962 8,222 

    

Cash flow from investing activities    

Payments to improve and acquire housing properties  (20,064) (13,650) 

Payments to acquire other tangible and intangible fixed assets  (80) (205) 

Investment purchases  - - 

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets  2,759 1,457 

Capital grants received  6,273 5,209 

Interest received  42 24 

  (11,070) (7,165) 

Cash flow from financing activities    

Interest paid  (1,970) (1,731) 

Other charges  (143) (85) 

Cost of borrowing  - (43) 

New secured loans  60 10,040 

Loan (Debtor)  (60) (40) 

Gift Aid  (152) (59) 

Repayments of borrowings  - - 

  (2,265) 8,082 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  (5,373) 9,139 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  11,059 1,920 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  5,686 11,059 

Consolidated Statement 
of Cash Flows 
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1.  Legal status 

The Association is registered under the Co-operative & Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 with 
charitable rules and is registered with the Welsh Government. The Association is also a Public 
Benefit Entity (“PBE”). 

The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place of business is Morfa Gele, North 
Wales Business Park, Cae Eithin, Abergele LL22 8LJ. 

The Association was set up for the purpose of accepting a large scale voluntary transfer of housing 
stock from Conwy County Borough Council.  This transfer took place on 29 September 2008. It was 
established to instigate a major works improvement programme to the transferred housing stock 
and implement an environmental upgrade strategy to complement the direct investment in homes. 
These upgrade improvement works were completed December 2012. 

The Association’s principal activities are provision of management, maintenance and improvement 
services to 3,991 rented homes.  The Association also provides a management service to 146 
leasehold flats (2019: 147), and 234 (2019: 132) units of temporary accommodation on behalf of 
Conwy County Borough Council and private landlords.   

2.  Accounting policies 
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (UK GAAP) including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”), the Housing SORP 2018 “Statement of Recommended Practice for 
Registered Housing Providers” and comply with the Accounting Requirements for Registered Social 
Landlords – General Determination (Wales) 2015. They have been prepared on historic cost basis with 
the exception of the revaluation of investment properties. 

Reduced Disclosures 

 

 

 In accordance with FRS 102, the Association has taken advantage of the exemptions from the following 
disclosure requirements in its individual financial statements; 

• Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ – Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flow and related 
notes and disclosures 

• Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ & Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instrument Issues’ – 
Carrying amounts, interest income/expense and net gains/losses for each category of financial 
instrument; basis of determining fair values; details of collateral, loan defaults or breaches, 
details of hedges, hedging fair value changes recognised in profit or loss and in other 
comprehensive income. 

• Section 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ – Compensation for key management personnel 

Notes to the  
Financial Statements 
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Monetary amounts in these financial statements are resented in sterling, the functional currency of the 
organisation and rounded to the nearest whole £1,000 except where otherwise indicated. 

Going Concern 

The Group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its future 
development are set out within the Strategic Report.  The Association has in place long-term debt 
facilities including £16m (2019: £8m) of undrawn facilities as at 31 March 2020, which provide 
adequate resources to finance committed reinvestment and development programmes, along with 
the Group’s day to day operations.  The Group also has a long term business plan which shows that it 
is able to service these debt facilities whilst continuing to comply with lender’s covenants.  

The Covid-19 pandemic is having an operational impact on businesses and social housing providers. 
The late onset of the pandemic in 2019/20 resulted in a minimal impact on the Group operations. As  
the main impact will follow the financial year-end, the organisation has reviewed what the likely 
effect and implications of the pandemic would be on liquidity and compliance with our regulatory 
and funder requirements. We have also assessed the potential impact on our key strategic risks.  
This was tested against the thirty year business plan with a set of stretching assumptions. 

The base business plan is built upon realistic and agreed assumptions for income and expenditure. 
These are set in line with expectations and also provide sufficient headroom to enable the 
organisation to react to any adverse events that can occur within our normal operating 
environment.  In consideration of the potential impact upon our organisation from Covid-19, we 
constructed a revised cashflow from the impact of reduced income and expenditure and delays to 
our development and external works programmes from the three month lockdown period. This 
demonstrated that the organisation remained financially viable over the 24 month period analysed 
but would reduce liquidity by £0.521m.  

To further understand the impact on our operations, the base business plan was tested against a 
number of scenarios. This included increasing arrears by 50% for 1 year and then reducing this 
proportionately back to the baseline figure over 3 years.  Additionally, increasing the allowance for 
bad debts to 3% and doubling voids to 4% for the forthcoming two years. A further scenario was 
modelled in recognition of the delays in the development programme from the three month 
lockdown period as well as increasing expenditure costs due to the unknown but potential 
implications on staffing and materials in the post Covid-19 operating environment. This included 
modelling a number of multi-variant scenarios. 

The results of this demonstrated that over the short and medium term there were no areas of non-
compliance but the scenarios tested did reduce the operating surplus by £0.970m over the life of the 
plan.   

Monitoring the operating environment over the medium and long term for the effects of the Covid-
19 pandemic will be critical to ensure that we remain financially and operationally viable. Should a 
further period of regional or national  lockdown take place, the Group would utilise its funding 
arrangements and potential Government support to mitigate the effects on its operations .  

The Brexit transition period will end on the 31 December 2020. It is hoped that a trade relationship 
with the European Union (EU) and third countries will continue, however, there is a possibility that 
there may be a ’no-deal’ exit from the EU. The Group has assessed the operational impact this may 
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have on the organisation and concluded that this is currently minimal given our current staffing, 
funding, supplier and material make-up.  

In consideration of the above the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group and 
Association has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, 
being a period of at least twelve months after the date on which the report and financial statements 
are signed. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial statements. 

Turnover and revenue recognition 
 
Turnover comprises rental, service charges and other services provided at the invoice value 
(excluding VAT where repayable) of goods and services supplied in the year and grants receivable in 
the year. 
 
Rental income and service charges are recognised from the point when properties under 
development reach practical completion or otherwise become available for letting, net of any voids.  
 
Revenue grants are receivable when the conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have been 
met.  Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due 
under the contractual arrangements with the Local Authority. 
 
Basis of consolidation 
 
The accounts consolidate the accounts of Cartrefi Conwy Cyfyngedig and its subsidiary, Creating 
Enterprise C.I.C at 31 March using the purchase method. 
 
Investment in subsidiaries 
 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the association and its 
subsidiary, Creating Enterprise C.I.C.  Control is achieved where the Association has the power to 
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 
 
Creating Enterprise C.I.C started its trading activities on the 1 April 2015. All intra-group transactions, 
balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. 
 
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost, less any subsequent impairment. 
 
Capitalisation of property development costs 

Properties in the course of construction are carried out at cost, less any identified impairment loss.  
Cost includes professional fees and other directly attributable costs that are necessary to bring the 
property to its operating condition.  Depreciation commences when the properties are ready for 
their intended use. 
 
Housing properties 
 
Housing properties are properties held for the provision of social housing or to otherwise provide 
social benefit.  Housing properties are principally properties available for rent and are stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Cost includes the cost of acquiring the land 
and buildings and associated development costs.  
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The majority of the association’s housing stock were purchased from Conwy County Borough Council 
on 29 September 2008 and are shown at nil cost. 
 
Works to existing properties which replace a component are capitalised as improvements and have 
been treated separately for depreciation purposes.  
 
Expenditure on existing housing properties is capitalised to the extent that it improves the economic 
benefit of the asset.  Such enhancements can occur if improvements result in: 
  

• An increase in rental income 
• A material reduction in future maintenance costs; or 
• A significant extension to the life of the property 

 
Donated land and other assets 
 
Land or other assets which have been donated by a government source is added to cost of assets at 
the fair value of the land at the time of the donation.  The difference between the fair value of the 
donated and the consideration paid is treated as a non-monetary grant and included within the 
Statement of Financial Position as a liability.  
 
Depreciation of housing properties 
 
The Association separately identifies the major components which comprise its housing properties 
and charges depreciation, so as to write-down the cost of each component to its estimated residual 
value, on a straight line basis, over its estimate useful economic life.  
 
 
 
 

 

Properties under construction 

Properties under the course of construction are carried at cost, less any identifiable impairment 
loss.  Cost includes professional fees and other directly attributable costs that are necessary to bring 
the property to its operating condition.  Depreciation commences when the properties are ready for 

Structure – traditional build  80 years 
Structure – non-traditional build  40 years 
Roofs – houses  50 years 
Roofs – flats  30 years 
Roofs – slate  80 years 
Flat roofs – flats  20 years 
Non-traditional property improvements  40 years 
Windows – houses  30 years 
External Wall Insulation  60 years 
Rewires  30 years 
Windows – flats  30 years 
Lifts  25 years 
Bathrooms  25 years 
Doors  25 years 
Door entry systems  20 years 
Kitchens   15 years 
Central heating boilers  15 years  
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their intended use. 

Depreciation is charged for a full year in the year of purchase but none in the year of disposal. 

Other tangible fixed assets 

Other fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment loss.  Depreciation is provided evenly on the cost of other tangible fixed assets to write 
them down to their estimated residual values over their expected useful lives.   The rates used for 
other tangible fixed assets are: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Land is not depreciated. 
 
Investment properties 
 
Investment properties consist of commercial properties and are properties not held for social 
benefit.  These properties are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value.  
Changes in fair value are recognised in income and expenditure.  
 
Impairment of assets 

An assessment is made at each reporting date of whether there are indications that a fixed asset 
(including housing properties) may be impaired or that an impairment loss previously recognised 
has fully or partially reversed.  If such indications exist, the RP estimates the recoverable amount of 
the asset. 
 
Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts, being the 
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use of the asset based on its service potential, are 
recognised as impairment losses in the income and expenditure account.  
 
Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have 
ceased to apply.  Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in income and expenditure.  On 
reversal of an impairment loss, the depreciation or amortisation is adjusted to allocate the asset’s 
revised carrying amount (less any residual value) over its remaining useful life. 
 
Supporting People 
 
Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due under 
the contractual arrangements with Administering Authorities.   
 
 
 
 
 

Land & offices  over 50 years 
Furniture, fixtures and fittings  over 10 years 
Equipment  over 5 years 
Plant and tools  over 4 years 
Computer hardware  between 2 and 5 years 
Vehicles  Over 2 years 
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VAT 
 
The Group charges Value Added Tax (VAT) on some of its income and is able to recover part of the 
VAT it incurs on expenditure.  The balance of the VAT payable or recoverable at the year-end is 
included as a current liability or asset. 
 
VAT Shelter 
 
The association entered into a VAT shelter coincident with the date of transfer of the housing stock 
from Conwy County Borough Council.  The arrangement sets out an agreed schedule of 
refurbishment works to the properties.  The value of these works was £142.1m.  The cost to Conwy 
County Borough Council of contracting for these works undertaken was offset against an equal 
increase in the purchase price of the stock paid by the association.  This transaction is not reflected 
in the financial statements reflecting the substance of the transaction over its legal form.  The works 
contracted will be carried out over a 15 year period from 29 September 2008, and are recognised as 
they are undertaken.  In the event the association does not complete the works specified, the 
development agreement may be terminated at no financial loss to the association. 
 
Taxation 
 
Cartrefi Conwy Cyfyngedig has charitable status and is registered with the Financial Conduct 
Authority and is therefore exempt from paying Corporation Tax on charitable activities. 

On this basis no tax charge to the Group should arise and accordingly no provisions are held at 31 
March 2020 in respect of corporation tax. 

Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments which meet the criteria of a basic financial instrument as defined in Section 11 
of FRS 102 are accounted for under an amortised historic cost model. 

Non-basic financial instruments are recognised at fair value using a valuation technique with any 
gains or losses being reported in surplus or deficit.  At each year end, the instruments are re-valued 
to fair value, with the movements posted to income and expenditure. 

The Association has not adopted hedge accounting for financial instruments.  
 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Debtors 

 
Debtors which are receivable within one year and which do not constitute a financing transaction 
are initially measured at amortised cost.  

 
Where the arrangement with a trade debtor constitutes a financing transaction, the debtor is 
initially and subsequently measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market 
rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.  

 
A provision for impairment of debtors is established when there is objective evidence that the 
amounts due will not be collected according to the original terms of the contract.  Impairment losses 
are immediately recognised in the profit and loss. 
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Financial Liabilities 
 

Trade creditors 
 

Trade and other creditors payable within one year that do not constitute a financing transaction are 
initially measured at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the 
transaction price less any amounts settled. 

 
Where the arrangement with a trade creditor constitutes a financing transaction, the creditor is 
initially and subsequently measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market 
rate of interest for a similar instrument. 
 
Employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense in the period in which 
they were incurred. Short term benefits include annual leave pay, Flexi-time entitlement and Time 
Off In Lieu. 
 
The annual leave year end is the anniversary of the start date of each individual employee.  An 
accrual or prepayment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position for difference between 
the short term benefits and the short term benefits used in the accounting period. 
  
Pensions 
 
Defined benefit plans 
  
The Association participates in two funded multi-employer defined benefit schemes, the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). 
 
LGPS 
The LGPS is managed by Gwynedd Council.  Contributions are assessed in accordance with the 
advice of an independent qualified actuary.  
 
LGPS Asset/Liability 
 
The net defined benefit asset/liability represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
minus the fair value of plan assets out of which obligations are to be settled. Any asset resulting 
from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds or reductions in future 
contributions to the plan. 
The rate used to discount the benefit obligations to their present value is based on market yields for 
high quality corporate bonds with terms and currencies consistent with those of the benefit 
obligations. 
 
Gains/Losses  
 
Gains or losses recognised in profit or loss: 

• The change in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service during the year 
is recognised as an employee cost. The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, 
settlements and curtailments are recognised as incurred.  

• Net interest on the net defined benefit asset/liability comprises the interest cost on the 
defined benefit obligation and interest income on the plan assets, calculated by multiplying 
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the fair value of the plan assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount 
the benefit obligations. 

 
Gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income: 

• Actuarial gains and losses. 
• The difference between the interest income on the plan assets and the actual return on the 

plan assets. 
 
SHPS 
 
The Group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’), a defined benefit 
multiemployer pension scheme administered by TPT Retirement Solutions (‘TPT’). For the SHPS, the 
share of the scheme assets and liabilities has been able to be identified from 1 April 2018 and 
therefore has applied defined benefit accounting from this date onwards. 
 
The scheme assets are measured at fair value. Scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis 
using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at appropriate high quality corporate 
bond rates. The net surplus or deficit is presented separately from other net assets on the statement 
of financial position. This has been recognized within the defined benefit pension liability on the face 
of the statement of financial position. 
 
The current service cost and costs from settlements and curtailments are charged against operating 
surplus. Past service costs are recognised in the current reporting period within the income and 
expenditure account. Interest is calculated on the net defined benefit liability. Remeasurements are 
reported in other comprehensive income. Further disclosures in this area are included in note 22. 

 
Defined contribution plans 
 
The group also participates in two multi-employer defined contribution schemes, the Social Housing 
Pension Scheme (SHPS) and The People’s Pension. It is not possible to identify the share of 
underlying assets and liabilities belonging to individual participating employers.  The charge to the 
income and expenditure represents the employer contribution payable to the scheme for the 
accounting period.  
 
Pension Liability 
 
The overall pension liability is calculated using a number of complex judgements and assumptions 
including the rate of retail and consumer price index (RPI/CPI), rate of increase in salaries, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and discount rates. Further information regarding assumptions used 
is included in note 22. 
 
Government Grants 
 
Government grants include grants receivable from the Welsh Government and other government 
organisations.  Government grants received for housing properties are recognised in the income 
over the useful life of the housing property structure, 80 years, under the accruals model. 
 
Grants due from government organisations or received in advance are included as current assets or 
liabilities. 
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Government grants released on the sale of a property may be repayable but are normally available 
to be recycled and are credited to the Recycled Capital Grant Fund and included in the Statement of 
Financial Position in creditors. 
 
If there is no requirement to recycle or repay the grant on disposal of an asset, any unamortised 
grant remaining within creditors is released and recognised as income in the income and 
expenditure.  
 
Where individual components are disposed of this does not create a relevant event for recycling 
purposes, any grant which has been allocated to the component is released to income and 
expenditure.  Upon disposal of the associated property, the Association is required to recycle these 
proceeds and recognise them as a liability. 
 
Other grants 
 
Grants received from non-government sources are recognised using the performance model.  A 
grant which does not impose specified future performance conditions is recognised as revenue when 
the grant proceeds are received or receivable.  A grant that imposes specified future performance-
related conditions on the Association is recognised only when these conditions are met.  A grant 
received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a liability. 
 
Intangible fixed assets 
 
Computer software and website development is capitalised and written off (amortised) evenly 
between three to five years.  This represents the period over which the software is expected to give 
rise to an economic benefit. 
 
Stock 
 
Stocks represent spares held for repairs and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
At each reporting date, the company assesses whether stocks are impaired or if an impairment loss 
that has been recognised in prior periods has reversed. 

Leases 
 
The Group as Lessee – Operating Leases 
 
All leases are operating leases and the annual rentals are charged to Statement of Comprehensive 
Income on a straight line basis over the lease term. 
 
The Group as a Lessor – Operating Leases 
 
Where a group member grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the balance sheet. Rental income is credited to the operating expenditure 
line in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Credits are made on a straight line 
basis over the life of the lease even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a 
premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating or 
arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an 
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.  
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Provision for liabilities and contingent liabilities  
 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it 
is probable the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made. 

The Group recognises an accrual for annual leave accrued by employees as a result of services 
rendered in the current period, and which employees are entitled to carry forward and use within 
the next twelve months.  The accrual is measured at the salary cost payable for the period of 
absence. 

A contingent liability arises when an event has taken place that gives a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Group. They can arise in circumstances where a provision would 
otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the cash in hand and on demand deposits, together with 
other short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash 
and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
Other income 
 
Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at 
the effective interest rate. 
 
Interest payable 
 
Interest payable is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year to which it 
relates. 
 
Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 
The preparation of the financial instruments in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the Board to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results in the future could differ from those estimates. In this regard, the Board believe that the 
critical accounting policies where judgments and estimations are necessarily applied are summarised 
below:  

Depreciation and Residual Values 

The Board have reviewed the asset lives and associated residual values of all fixed asset classes and 
have concluded that asset lives and residual values are appropriate. 
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Provisions and Accruals 

Management bases its judgments on the circumstances relating to each specific event and upon 
currently available information. However, given the inherent difficulties in estimating liabilities in 
these areas, it cannot be guaranteed that additional costs will not be incurred beyond the amounts 
accrued. 

Significant judgements and estimations 

Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant judgements and 
estimates. The items in the financial statements where these judgements and estimates have been 
made include: 

Impairment - the Association has to make an assessment as to whether an indicator of impairment 
exists. Factors taken into consideration include the economic viability and expected future financial 
performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability 
and expected future performance of that unit. Where there are indications of impairment, the fixed 
asset is written down to the recoverable amount and any impairment losses are charged to the 
operating surpluses. The recoverable amount is based on Existing Use Value – Social Housing (EUV-
SH) or depreciated replacement cost. 

Pensions – there are critical underlying assumptions in relation to the estimate of the pensions 
defined benefit scheme obligation such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rates and 
anticipated future salary increases. Variations in these estimates influence the fair value of the 
liability recorded and annual defined benefit expense. 

Tangible fixed assets - the Association depreciates its tangible fixed assets over their estimated 
useful lives taking into account residual lives where appropriate. Management reviews its estimate 
of the useful lives of depreciable assets  at each reporting date based on expected utility of the 
assets. Uncertainties that can impact upon the estimations include obsolescence and future market 
conditions.  

Events after the reporting period 

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date the Statement of Accounts is authorised for 
issue which have an impact on the financial statements and are treated as follows. Two types of 
events can be identified: 
 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – 
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events. 
 

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement 
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would 
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the event and their 
estimated financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the authorised for issue date are not reflected in the statement of 
accounts. 
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3.  Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating costs and operating surplus 

 

 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019 

 Turnover Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
surplus/(deficit) 

Turnover Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
surplus/(deficit) 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Social Housing lettings 23,902 (18,893) 5,009 22,369 (17,857) 4,512 

Other Social Housing Activities 114 (446) (332) 114 (433) (319) 

Development  and other 259 (678) (419) 232 (441) (209) 

Non Social Housing Activities 1,541 (1,349) 192 983 (790) 193 

Total 25,816 (21,366) 4,450 23,698 (19,521) 4,177 

       

 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019 

 Turnover Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
surplus/(deficit) 

Turnover Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
surplus/(deficit) 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Garage rent receivable net of voids 276 (40) 236 261 (204) 57 

Leaseholder service charge income 54 (86) (32) 100 (199) (99) 

Commercial rent receivable 173 (94) 79 156 (31) 125 

SARTH Management 62 (62) - 60 (60) - 

Other miscellaneous income 976 (1,067) (91) 406 (296) 110 

Total 1,541 (1,349) 192 983 (790) 193 
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Group and Association 

Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings 

 

 

   2020 2020 2020 2019 

   General 

Needs 

Housing 

Supported 

Housing 

Total Total 

   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Turnover from Lettings       

Rents receivable net of voids   14,523 4,935 19,458 18,303 

Service charges receivable   257 385 642 560 

Supporting People   21 498 519 542 

Grants from Welsh Government   2,802 - 2,802 2,734 

Amortised Government Grant   131 7 138 100 

Other Revenue Grants   - - - - 

Other income   280 63 343 130 

Total Turnover   18,014 5,888 23,902 22,369 

   2020 2020 2020 2019 

   General 
Needs 

Housing 

Supported 
Housing 

Total Total 

   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Expenditure on Lettings       

Management   (5,187) (1,847) (7,034) (6,599) 

Services   (474) (1,187) (1,661) (1,629) 

Routine maintenance   (2,361) (897) (3,258) (2,839) 

Planned maintenance    (742) (373) (1,115) (936) 

Major Repairs   (2,227) (813) (3,040) (3,440) 

Environmental works   (100) (67) (167) (108) 
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4. Accommodation in management and development 

 

The Association manages accommodation for Conwy County Borough Council and private landlords. 

 

Rent loss from Bad Debts   (158) (27) (185) (120) 

Depreciation of housing properties   (1,887) (454) (2,341) (2,120) 

Other Expenditure   (67) (25) (92) (66) 

Total expenditure from lettings   (13,203) (5,690) (18,893) (17,857) 

       

Operating Surplus on Lettings   4,811 198 5,009 4,512 

       

Rent Loss due to Voids   (305) (61) (366) (279) 

    2020 2019 

    Number of  

Properties 

Number of 

Properties  

Social Housing    

General Housing   

- Social rent 2,835 2,831 

- Intermediate 155 96 

- Rent to Own 15 - 

Supported Housing    986 986 

Total Owned & in management    3,991 3,913 

Accommodation managed for others      

- Properties where the Association has a residual freehold interest 146 147 

- Properties managed for others 239 132 

Total Managed    4,376 4,192 

      

Accommodation in Development at the year end 127 177 
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5.  Operating surplus is stated after: 

6.  Surplus on sale of fixed assets – housing properties  

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Depreciation of housing properties 2,341 2,119 2,341 2,119 

Depreciation of other fixed assets 152 154 136 141 

Amortisation on of intangible fixed assets 59 122 57 120 

Grant income released 138 100 138 100 

Amount of stock recognised as an expense 549 510 482 456 

Operating lease rentals     

- Land and buildings 19 16 15 16 

- Motor vehicles 229 202 221 193 

- Office equipment 25 85 24 84 

- Plant and equipment 44 42 31 30 

     

Auditors’ remuneration     

- Fees payable to the Association’s auditors for the audit of 
the financial statements 

45 

 

52 33 43 

- Fees payable to the Association’s auditors for other services 4 4 4 4 

     

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000  

Group and Association    

Disposal proceeds 2,759 1,457 

Less cost of sales (163) (95) 

Surplus on sale of property    2,596 1,362 
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7.  Interest receivable and other income 

 

8.  Interest and financing costs 

 

9.  Employees  
 
The average number of employees employed during the financial year (including executive officers 
(2020: 5 and 2019: 4) expressed in full time equivalents, calculated based on a standard working 
week of 37 or 42 hours as appropriate. 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Interest receivable and other income 42 24 42 24 

Total 42 24 42 24 

    2020 2019 

Group and Association      £’000 £’000  

 Loan interest 1,970 1,731 

Non-utilisation fees 101 60 

Trustee Security fees 18 16 

Valuation fee 24 9 

Loan facility arrangement fee 118 52 

Net interest on pension liability    78 15 

Total    2,309 1,883 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 
 No. No. No. No. 

Administration 132 127 117 113 

Building maintenance staff 72 68 23 24 

Wardens, caretakers and cleaners 25 25 25 25 
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The full-time equivalent number of staff who received remuneration (excluding directors): 225 
(2019: 213). 
 

 
 
The Association’s employees are members of either the Gwynedd Council Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) or the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS).  The employees of the subsidiary are 
members of The People’s Pension. 
 
 
 
 
10.  Executive Directors  

 
 
The Association has four paid Executive Officers (2019: 4).  The aggregate amount of emoluments 
(including benefits in kind and pension contributions) paid to or receivable by the four Executives of 
the Association during the year was £555,653 (2019: £484,653). In the opinion of the Board the 
Executive Directors are the key management personnel. Remuneration including Employers N.I. was 
£620,288 (2019: £541,062). 
 
The emoluments paid during the year to the highest paid Executive Officer, Chief Executive, Mr. 
Andrew Bowden excluding pension contributions, but including benefits in kind were £160,677 
(2019: £150,889). 
 

Total 229 220 165 162 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 No. No. No. No. 

Wages and salaries 6,622 6,110 5,266 4,932 

Social security costs 614 568 501 471 

Other pension costs 485 440 451 419 

Total 7,721 7,118 6,218 5,822 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000  

Salary 507 443 

Benefits in kind (mainly car provision) 21 21 

Employer’s pension contribution 28 21 

Total 556 485 
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Both the former and the current Group Director of Resources (April to August and June to March, 
respectively) are ordinary members of the Gwynedd Council Local Government Pension Scheme and 
the Managing Director Cartrefi Conwy is an ordinary member of the Social Housing Pension Scheme.  
No enhanced or special terms apply to their pensions and they have no individual pension 
arrangement to which the Association makes a contribution. 
 
The annualised emoluments (excluding pension contributions, but including benefits in kind) paid to 
the Chief Executive and Executive Officers earning more than £50,000 were in the following range: 
 

 
 
 
Board Members 
 
The composition of the Board changed on acceptance of Rule Changes effective January 2019 - 
moving away from a constituency-based Board. Of those currently appointed to the Board, 1 
member is also a Tenant of the Association. Remuneration Payments were effective from January 
2019 which is reflected in the 2018/19 figures below. This is the first full year that non-executive 
Board Members have been remunerated for their role 

 
Reimbursement of expenses to Non-executive Board members amounted to £9,579 (2019: £11,496) 
in this year, relating to travel and other incidental expenditure. 
 

 

 

 

    2020 2019 

    No. No.  

£95,000     -  £109,999 - 3 
 

£110,000   -  £124,999 3 - 
 

£125,000   -  £139,999 - - 
 

£140,000   -  £154,999 - 1 
 

£155,000   -  £169,999 1 - 
 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000  

Salary 45 11 
 

Total 45 11 
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11.  Intangible fixed assets  

The above net book value is in relation to the Association with the exception of £4,528 of assets held 
by the subsidiary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group and Association    2020 2019 

   Computer 
Software 

& Website 

Total Total 

   £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost    

As at 1 April 2019 1,365 1,365 1,292 

Additions during the year - - 82 

Disposals (44) (44) (9) 

At 31 March 2020 1,321 1,321 1,365 

    

Depreciation and impairment    

As at 1 April 2019 1,270 1,270 1,157 

Charge for the year 59 59 122 

Disposals (44) (44) (9) 

At 31 March 2020 1,285 1,285 1,270 

    

Net book value    

As at 31 March 2020 36 36 89 

As at 31 March 2019 89 89 95 
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12. Fixed assets – housing properties 
 

 
 
Expenditure on works to existing properties 

Group and Association      

   Social Housing 
Properties held 

for letting 

Housing Properties 
for letting under 

construction 

Total 
Housing 

Properties  

   £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost    

As at 1 April 2019 59,894 6,452 66,346 

Additions during the year 3,515 16,522 20,037 

Schemes completed 13,955 (13,955) - 

Disposals (173) - (173) 

At 31 March 2020 77,191 9,019 86,210 

    

Depreciation and impairment    

As at 1 April 2019 12,645 - 12,645 

Depreciation charged in year 2,341 - 2,341 

Released on disposal (66) - (66) 

At 31 March 2020 14,920 - 14,920 

    

Net book value    

As at 31 March 2020 62,271 9,019 71,290 

As at 31 March 2019 47,249 6,452 53,701 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000  

Improvement works capitalised 3,515 2,647 

Amounts charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 3,040 3,440 

Total 6,555 6,087 
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13.  Tangible fixed assets – other 
 
 

 
 
Included within the accumulated depreciation and impairment of leasehold, land and offices is 
accumulated impairment losses of £2.287m in relation to the Head Office.   
 
The figures in the table above relate to the Association with the exception of the following net book 
values held by the subsidiary:  
IT Hardware - £3,636 
Furniture & Fittings - £40,560 
Plant & Tools - £9,496 
 
 
 
 

Group and Association Land & 
Buildings 

Computer 
Hardware 

Equipment Furniture, 
Fixtures & 

Fittings 

Plant & 
Tools 

Vehicles Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost        

As at 1 April 2019 4,759 775 - 398 14 8 5,954 

Additions during the year - 40 19 37 11 - 107 

Disposals - - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2020 4,759 815 19 435 25 8 6,061 

        

Depreciation and impairment        

As at 1 April 2019 2,481 737 - 175 9 8 3,410 

Charge for the year 41 58 4 43 6 - 152 

Disposals - - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2020 2,522 795 4 218 15 8 3,562 

        

Net book value        

As at 31 March 2020 2,237 20 15 217 10 - 2,499 

As at 31 March 2019 2,278 38 - 223 4 - 2,543 
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14.  Investment properties non-social housing properties held for    
letting 
 

 
 
 
The Association owns a business park and two of the six units are leased to the Association’s 
subsidiary, Creating Enterprise.  The other four units are leased to external suppliers/contractors. 
The existing investment properties were valued at 3 May 2019.  The Association’s investment 
properties have been valued by Richard Baddeley, professional external valuers.  The full valuation 
of properties was undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal 
Institute of Chartered Surveyors.  
 
15.  Subsidiary Undertakings 
 
As required by statute, the financial statements consolidate the results of Creating Enterprise C.I.C, 
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Association at the end of the year.  The Association has 
the right to appoint 3 of the 5 members to the Board of the subsidiary and thereby exercises control 
over it.  The subsidiary is registered as a ‘community interest company’, a social enterprise 
organisation. 
 
16.  Stock 
 
The Group holds stock in relation to materials needed for repairs.  The value of the stock as at 31 
March 2020 was £154,910 (2019: £107,208). The value of Association stock was £62,355 (2019: 
£67,119). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group and Association    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000  

Improvement works capitalised 1,253 1,334 

Amounts charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 21 (81) 

Total 1,274 1,253 
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17.  Debtors 
 

 
 
 
There are four leaseholder loans. These loans are repayable by installments repayable over 10 years 
or through a legal charge registered against the property. 
 
 
 
 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Due within one year     

Rent and service charges receivable 1,002 746 1,002 746 

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts on rent & service charges (712) (576) (712) (576) 

 290 170 290 170 

Other debtors 1,239 1,161 647 906 

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts (300) (248) (300) (242) 

 939 913 347 664 

Social Housing Grant 1,108 911 1,108 911 

Staff car loans & Cycle To Work scheme - 2 - 2 

VAT 208 125 208 125 

Leaseholder loans 1 1 1 1 

Prepayments and accrued income 728 888 728 888 

Amounts owed by the subsidiary - - 103 40 

 3,274 3,009 2,785 2,801 

Due after more than one year     

Staff loans - - - - 

Leaseholder loans 15 10 15 10 

 15 10 15 10 

Total 3,289 3,019 2,800 2,811 
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18.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
 

 
Loans are repaid in quarterly and half-yearly instalments at fixed rates of interest as set out in note 
29. The final repayments fall in the period 2029 to 2052. 
 
 
19.  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 
 

 
Loans are repaid in quarterly and half-yearly instalments at fixed rates of interest as set out in note 
29. The final repayments fall in the period 2029 to 2052. 
 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Loan principal and interest  242 249 242 249 

Maintenance and other supplies 753 922 753 922 

Capital expenditure on properties 35 107 35 107 

Accruals and deferred income 938 862 519 507 

Prepayments of rents and service charges 242 251 242 251 

Deferred  income 137 100 137 100 

Revenue grant 21 11 21 11 

Salary & other employee costs 128 126 128 126 

Other creditors 1,345 1,126 119 77 

Taxation 23 - - - 

Amounts owed to the subsidiary - - 791 587 

Total 3,864 3,754 2,987 2,937 

Group and Association    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000  

Debt    41,204 41,149 

Deferred capital grant (Note 20) 17,988 12,852 

Recycled capital grant 1,547 586 

Total 60,739 54,587 
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20.  Deferred capital grant 
 

 
 
 
21. Recycled Capital Grant Fund 
 
 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000  

At 1 April 13,537 8,429 

Grant received in the year:   

Housing Properties 5,312 4,623 

Recycled Capital Grant Fund 961 585 

 19,810 13,637 

Grants recycled during the year:   

Recycled capital Grants Fund - - 

Amortised to Statement of Comprehensive Income (138) (100) 

At 31 March  19,672 13,537 

   

Amounts to be released within one year 138 100 

Amounts to be released in more than one year 19,534 13,437 

Total 19,672 13,537 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

At the start of the year 586 - 586 - 

Inputs to the Fund:     

Grants recycled from deferred capital 961 585 961 585 

Interest accrued - 1 - 1 
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22.  Pensions 
 
There are several pension schemes operated by the Group. 
 
Gwynedd Council Local Government Pension Scheme (Defined Benefit) 

 
The Association is an admitted member of the Gwynedd Pension Fund which is part of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) – a funded defined benefit scheme. Triennial actuarial 
valuations are performed by a qualified actuary using the “projected unit” method. The most recent 
formal actuarial update of the Fund was at 31 March 2019 carried out by a qualified independent 
actuary. As at 31 March 2020 the number of Association employees in the Gwynedd Pension Fund 
was 131 (2019: 129) and the scheme is operated for active members and new entrants.  
 

In July 2020 the government released consultation on applying a remedy to the McCloud judgement 
which surrounds age discrimination and for which £88,000 of additional liabilities has been included 
in the overall pension liabilities at the 31 March 2020. The consultation proposes to limit eligibility to 
those members who were active at 31 March 2012 and, if successful, would result in reduced 
liabilities. As it is currently unclear on how this may affect the pension liability, no adjustment has 
been made to the actuarial valuation figures within the financial statements.   
 

Contributions  

The employers’ contributions to the Scheme by the Association for the year ended 31 March 2020 
were £367,049 (2019: £352,149 at a rate of 10.1% of pensionable pay) at a contribution rate of 
10.1% of pensionable salaries. 
Estimated employers’ contributions to the Gwynedd Pension Scheme during the accounting year 
commencing 1 April 2019 are £367,000 at a contribution rate of 10.1% of pensionable salaries.   

 

 

 

Recycling of Grant:     

New build properties - - - - 

     

Repayment of Grant - - - - 

At the end of the year 1,547 586 1,547 586 

     

Amounts 3 years and older where repayment may be required: - - - - 
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Financial Assumptions: 

The key assumptions used by the actuary in assessing scheme liabilities on an FRS102 basis were: 

 

Mortality Assumptions: 

The post retirement mortality assumptions used to value the benefit obligation at March 2020        
follow the mortality approach used by the Administering Authority (Gwynedd Pension Fund) which is 
based on a detailed analysis of the individual membership of the Fund. The latest analysis was 
carried out for the 2019 formal funding valuation. The assumed life expectations on retirement at 
age 65 are: 
 

 
The mortality assumptions are identical to those used in the previous accounting period. 

 

Commutation 

An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 50% of the maximum additional tax 
free cash up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the maximum tax-free cash for 
post-April 2008 service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

    % per annum % per annum 

Inflation/ Pension increase rate 1.8 2.5 

Salary increase rate 2.1 2.5 

Discount Rate 2.3 2.4 

    Males Females 

    No. Years No. Years 

Current pensioners 21.3 23.4 

Future pensioners 22.2 25.1 
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Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net Liability for year end 
31 March 2020 

 

 

Period ended 31 March 2020   Assets Obligations Net 
(liability)/Asset 

   £’000 £’000 £’000 

Fair value of the plan assets 31,071 - 31,071 

Present value of the funded liabilities - 33,329 (33,329) 

Opening position as at 31 March 2019 31,071 33,329 (2,258) 

    

Service cost:    

Current service cost  1,665 (1,665) 

Past service cost  106 (106) 

Total Service Cost  1,771 (1,771) 

Net Interest:    

Net interest on plan assets 750  750 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  820 (820) 

Total Net Interest 750 820 (70) 

    

Total defined benefit cost recognised in Income or (Expenditure) 750 2,591 (1,841) 

    

Cashflows 240 240 - 

Plan participants’ contributions 395  395 

Employers contributions    

Benefits paid (405) (405) - 

Effect of business combinations and disposals - - - 

Expected closing position 32,051 35,755 (3,704) 
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Social Housing Pension Scheme (Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution) 
 
Defined Contribution 
The company participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 
500 non-associated participating employers.  Contributions payable to the scheme are charged to 
the comprehensive income and expenditure statement in the period to which they relate. The total 
employer contributions paid for the year ending 31 March 2020 was £41,322 (2019: £36,565). 
 
Defined Benefit 
The company participates in the SHPS defined Benefit scheme which is a multi-employer scheme 
administered by The Pensions Trust (TPT).  
 
Historically, TPT has not been able to provide sufficient information for each social landlord’s share 
of SHPS to allow defined benefit accounting to be applied, however due to changes in processes and 
systems, this information is now available. The most recent formal actuarial valuation of the Fund 
was at 30 September 2017 carried out by a qualified independent actuary. This has been rolled 
forward to 31 March 2020.  
 
Contributions 
The employers’ contributions to the Scheme by the Association for the year ended 31 March 2020 
were £42,567 (2019: £29,830 at a rate of 12.1% of pensionable pay) at a contribution rate of 18.7% 
of pensionable salaries. The employer contribution rates are set to address the defined benefit plan 
deficit. Estimated employer contributions payable to the scheme during the accounting year 
commencing 1 April 2020 is £49,231 at a contribution rate of 18.7% of pensionable salaries. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Remeasurements:    

Changes in demographic assumptions  (3,910) 3,910 

Changes in financial assumptions  (1,253) 1,253 

Other experience  (604) (604) 

Return on assets excluding amounts in net interest (2,663)  (2,663) 

Total remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI) 

(2,663) (5,767) 3,104 

    

Fair value of plan assets 29,388  29,388 

Present value of funded liabilities  29,988 (29,988) 

Closing position as at 31 March 2020   (600) 
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Financial and commutation Assumptions: 
 

 
 
Mortality Assumptions: 
 

 
 
Summary of the defined benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and defined benefit 
asset (liability): 

 

    31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

    % per annum % per annum 

Discount Rate 2.34 2.36 

Inflation (RPI) 2.53 3.24 

Inflation (CPI) 1.53 2.24 

Salary Growth 2.53 3.24 

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement 75% of 
maximum 

75% of 
maximum 

Assumed life expectancies on retirement at age 65 at March 2020 are: Life expectancy 

at age 65 

    (Years)  

Male retiring in 2020 21.5 
 

Female retiring in 2020 23.3 
 

Male retiring in 2040 22.9 
 

Female retiring 2040 24.5 
 

    31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

    £’000 £’000 

Fair value of the plan assets 1,002 902 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (1,163) (1,249) 

Surplus (deficit) in plan (161) (347) 

Unrecognised surplus - - 

Defined benefit asset (liability) to be recognised (161) (347) 
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Reconciliation of the Opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation: 
 

 
Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets: 
 

 
The actual return on the plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended 
31 March 2020 was £38,000. 
 
 
 
 

 31 March 2020 

    £’000  

Defined benefit obligation at start of period 1,249 
 

Current service cost 62 
 

Expenses 9 
 

Interest expense 30 
 

Contributions by plan participants 21 
 

Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience (11) 
 

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions (10) 
 

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial assumptions (178) 
 

Benefits paid and expenses  (9) 
 

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the period 1,163 
 

 31 March 2020 

    £’000  

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 902 
 

Interest income 22 
 

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income) – gain 
(loss) 

16 
 
 

Contributions by the employer 50 
 

Contributions by plan participants 21 
 

Benefits paid and expenses  (9) 
 

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the period 1,002 
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Defined benefit costs recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (SoCI): 
 

 
 
 
Defined Benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 31 March 2020 

    £’000  

Current service costs & expenses 21 
 

Net interest expense 8 
 

Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SoCI) 29 
 

 31 March 2020 

    £’000  

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income) – gain 
(loss) 

16 
 
 

Experience of gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities – gain (loss) 11 
 

Effect of changes in demographic assumptions underlying the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation – gain (loss) 

10 
 
 

Effect of changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation – gain (loss) 

178 
 
 

Total actuarial gain and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus not 
being recognised) – gain (loss) 

215 
 
 

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable(excluding 
amounts included in the net interest cost) – gain (loss)  

- 
 
 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 215 
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Assets comprise of: 
 

 
None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer’s 
own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the employer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

    £’000 £’000 

Absolute Return 52 78 

Alternative Risk Premia 70 52 

Corporate Bond Performance 57 42 

Credit Relative Value 28 17 

Distressed Opportunities 19 16 

Emerging Market Debt 30 31 

Fund of Hedge Funds 1 4 

Global Equity 147 152 

Infrastructure 75 47 

Infrastructure linked securities 31 26 

Liability Driven Investment 333 331 

Long Lease Property 17 13 

Net Current Assets 4 2 

Opportunistic illiquid credit 24 - 

Private Debt 20 12 

Property 22 20 

Risk Sharing 34 27 

Secured Income 38 32 

Total Assets 1,002 902 
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Reconciliation to Balance Sheet liability 

 
The People’s Pension 
 
The People’s Pension is a trust based defined contribution workplace pension scheme for non-
associated employers (i.e. a “master trust” pension scheme). The People’s Pension was set up by 
B&CE (Building and Civil Engineering Holidays Scheme Management Limited – a company Limited by 
guarantee) in 2011 for employers requiring a scheme to fulfil their workplace pension duties under 
the Pensions Act 2008.  

There is one legal trust and one trustee board, but a number of non-associated employers in 
addition to Creating Enterprise participate in the scheme. Each participating employer has a section 
within the master agreement. The trustee takes on governance responsibility for each section on 
matters such as investment funds and ensures compliance with regulatory duties. The decisions over 
benefit and contribution levels remain with the participating employer. 

The Board of B&CE has an Independent Chairman and comprises representatives from the following 
trade bodies:- The Civil Engineering Contractors Association, Federation of Master Builders, National 
Specialist Contractors Council, UK Contractors Group, Scottish Building Federation and National 
Federation of Builders and representatives from the  following trade unions-  Unite, UCATT and 
GMB. 

The amount charged to profit and loss in respect of pension costs is the contributions payable in the 
year. 

23. Cash and Cash equivalents 

 
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000 

Asset (liability) in relation to LGPS (600) (2,258) 

Asset (liability) in relation to SHPS (161) (347) 

Total (761) (2,605) 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bank Current Accounts 4,786 2,379 4,550 1,749 

Short term deposits with banks/Building Societies 900 8,680 900 8,680 

Total 5,686 11,059 5,450 10,429 
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24. Cumulative share capital issued and held in Reserves 
 

 
Share capital has been adjusted to reflect the actual number of current shareholders post the 
governance review in 2018-19. Relinquished shares have been dealt with in accordance with the 
Rules as stated below. 

The shares provide members with the right to vote at General Meetings but the shares do not carry 
the right to dividend payments or distribution on winding up. In accordance with the Rules (C4), 
when a shareholder ceases to be a shareholder or is expelled from the association, his or her share 
shall be cancelled. The amount paid up on that share shall become the property of the association. 
Shares cancelled or redeemed are written back to reserves. 

 
With effect from the introduction of The Regulation of Registered Social Landlords (Wales) Act 2018, 
effective from 15/08/2018, the Local Authority (Conwy County Borough Council) shareholder voting 
rights were removed and that share cancelled. 
 
Until the adoption of new Rules for the Association in January 2019, the remaining shareholders 
were grouped as below: 

• the tenant shareholders                             0 shares (2019: 13) 
• the independent shareholders                   0 shares (2019: 7) 
• the local authority shareholder                  0 share   (2019: 0) 

 
With effect from January 2019 there is no classification of shareholders. As at 31st March 2020 there 
were 21 shares in issue. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000 

As at 1 April 20 41 
Joining during the year  4 2 
Adjustment during the year  (3) (23) 
At 31 March 21 20 
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25.  Cash flow from operating activities 
 

 
 
 
 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000 

Surplus /  (deficit) for the year 4,953 3,599 
 

Adjustments for non-cash items:   

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,492 2,274 
 

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 59 121 
 

Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets (2,759) (1,457) 
 

Government grants utilised in the year (138) (100) 
 

Interest received (42) (24) 
 

Interest paid 1,970 1,731 
 

Taxation (23) - 

Other charges 143 85 
 

Pension costs less contributions payable 1,397 1,031 
 

Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals 107 63 
 

Movement in investments (21) 81 
 

Pension interest 78 15 
 

Deferred finance fees 53 52 
 

Movement in long term creditors to short term creditors (37) (58) 
 

   

Operating cashflow before movement in working capital:   

Decrease/(Increase) in stock (48) (8) 
 

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other debtors (536) 971 
 

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors 314 (123) 
 

(Decrease)/increase in SHPS pension provision - (31) 
 

Total Assets 7,962 8,222 
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Analysis of changes in Net Debt 
 

 
 
26.  Capital commitments 
 

 
The Association expects to fund the above commitments through a combination of Welsh 
Governments grant, property sales and loans. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  At 1 April  

2019 

Cash 

Flows 

Other  

Non-cash 
Movements 

At 31 March 
2020 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cash and cash equivalents:     

Cash 2,379 2,407 - 4,786 

Overdrafts - - - - 

Cash Equivalents 8,680 (7,780) - 900 

Total 11,059 (5,373) - 5,686 

     

Borrowings:     

Debt due within 1 year - - - - 

Debt due after 1 year 42,500 - - 42,500 

Total 42,500 - - 42,500 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000 

Capital expenditure   

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 16,734 21,426 

Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not contracted 28,596 17,884 
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27.  Leasing commitments 
 
The Group’s total future minimum operating leases payments are set out below:   
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
28.  Related parties 
 
There were 2 Board members (2019: 4) during the year, who were also tenants.  Their tenancies are 
on normal commercial terms and they cannot use their position to their advantage. The Board 
members rent charge for the year was £10,136 with an outstanding rent balance at the year-end of 
£44. 
 
 
 

Group  Land and 
Buildings 

Office 
equipment and 

computers 

Vehicles Plant and 
equipment  

2020 2019 

       

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Within one year - 18 34 14 66 49 
 

Between one and five years 65 24 311 20 420 382 
 

More than five years - - - - - - 
 

Total 65 42 345 34 486 431 
 

Association Land and 
Buildings 

Office 
equipment and 

computers 

Vehicles Plant and 
equipment  

2020 2019 

       

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Within one year - 17 34 10 61 49 

Between one and five years 24 11 303 6 344 347 

More than five years - - - - - - 

Total 24 28 337 16 405 396 
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Board members are actively engaged in the community. 
 

Kath Coughlin Llandrillo College 
Bill Hunt TPAS Cymru 
Bethan Jones Betsi Cadwalader Health Board 
Gareth Jones Handelsbanken 
David Shepherd Bangor University 

 

 

  
 
All and any transactions with that entity are conducted on an arms-length basis and independent of 
the Board Member. 
 
Following changes introduced by the Regulation of Social Landlords (Wales) Act 2018 relating to local 
authority control and the Association’s subsequent adoption of new Rules in January 2019, Conwy 
County Borough Council ceased to be a Shareholder of the Association or have the right to appoint 
any of the Board members (previously it was entitled to appoint five board members). Conwy 
County Borough Council is a party to the Transfer Agreement that established the Association in 
2008. The Association undertakes transactions with Conwy County Borough Council at arms’ length 
on normal commercial terms. 
 
Intercompany Transactions 

Income relates primarily to management fees by the Association to cover the running costs the 
Association incurs on behalf of managing its subsidiary and providing services. 

Purchases relate to maintenance services provided to Cartrefi Conwy properties and other 
properties managed by the Parent for third parties including Conwy County Borough Council’s 
temporary accommodation. 

    2020 2019 

    £’000 £’000 

Amounts charged by Cartrefi Conwy for management and administration 130 105 

Amounts charged by Cartrefi Conwy for office accommodation 56 56 

Amounts charged by Cartrefi Conwy for direct support staff 126 82 

Amounts charged by Cartrefi Conwy for the reimbursement of costs incurred 103 140 

   

Amounts contracted for with Creating Enterprise 8,020 8,274 

Amounts charged by Creating Enterprise for the reimbursement of costs incurred 310 242 

Amounts owed to Creating Enterprise for reimbursement of management and 
administration 

 

- 

 

1 

Amounts owed from Cartrefi Conwy for repairs and maintenance 1,157 925 
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29.  Financial Instruments  
 
Financial assets 
Financial assets comprise short term debtors and total £2.5m (2019: £2.2m). 
 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities comprise bank loans, trade creditors, other creditors and total £45m  
(2019: £44m). 
 
Financial liabilities – interest rate risk profile 
The Association’s financial liabilities are sterling denominated.  The interest rate profile of the 
Association’s financial liabilities at 31 March was: 

 
 
Borrowing facilities 
The Association has undrawn committed borrowing facilities.  The facilities available at 31 March 
2020 in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met were as follows: 
 

     Rate % 

    £m (inc Margin) 

Barclays Bank   

Initial Fix: 3.0 6.24 

Fix 1 2.0 6.26 

Fix 2 3.5 6.47 

Fix 3 4.5 6.53 

Fix 4 4.5 6.49 

   

BAE Systems Pension Fund CIF Trustees Ltd   

Tranche 1 15.0 3.37 

Tranche 2 10.0 3.37 

Total 42.5  

    2020 2019 

    £m £m 

Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years - - 

Expiring in more than two years 42.5 42.5 

Total 42.5 42.5 
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30. Debt Analysis 
 

 
 
31. Contingent Asset 
 
The Group recognises material assets and liabilities, which arise from past events, whose existence 
can only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, which are not 
wholly within the Group’s control. 
 
The Group is currently exploring potential future development opportunities and is currently 
collaborating with the Welsh Government to further these aims.  As this is still in the initial phase 
and subject to due diligence, future funding is probable but not yet certain. For these reasons no 
income has been reflected in the 2019-20 financial statements. 
 
 
 

 Group Association 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bank loans due within 5 years - - - - 

Bank Loans due after more than 5 years 42,500 42,500 42,500 42,500 

Less: issue costs (1,296) (1,351) (1,296) (1,351) 
 

Total Loans 41,204 41,149 41,204 41,149 
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